Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

Mojoose, Inc.
65 Enterprise
Aliso Viejo, CA 92656
WWW.mjoose.com

Up to $1,234,998.15 in Series A-1 Preferred Stock at $2.89
Minimum Target Amount: $9,996.48

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: Mojoose, Inc.

Address: 65 Enterprise, Aliso Viejo, CA 92656
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: February 21, 2014

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,996.48 | 3,459 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,234,998.15 | 427,335 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Series A-1 Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $2.89

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $300.56

*"Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Time-Based:

Time-Based:

Friends and Family Early Birds

Invest within the first week and receive 20% bonus shares
Super Early Bird Bonus

Invest within two weeks and receive 15% bonus shares
Early Bird Bonus

Invest within three weeks and receive 10% bonus shares

Amount-Based:

Tier 1| $500

50% off of case purchase of your choice with discount code (when available)
Tier 2 | $1,000+

100% off of case purchase of your choice with discount code (when available)
Tier 3| $2,500+

100% off of case purchase of your choice with discount code (when available) + 5%
bonus shares



Tier 4 |$5,000+

100% off of case purchase of vour choice with discount code (when available) + 10%
bonus shares

Tier 5 |$10,000+

100% off of 2 cases of your choice with 2 discount codes (when available) + 15% bonus
shares

Tier 6 |1$20,000+

100% off of 4 cases of your choice with 4 discount codes (when available) + 20% bonus
shares

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in
the same offering that meets the minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks
will not be granted if an investor submits mulitiple investments that, when combined,
meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

Mojoose, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are
committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc.
OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if vou buy 100 shares of Series A-1
Preferred Stock at $2.89 / share, you will receive 110 shares Series A-1 Preferred Stock,
meaning you'll own 110 shares for $289. Fractional shares will not be distributed and
share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses
based on the amount invested and time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors
will also receive the Owner’s Bonus in addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

MoJoose Inc. was initially organized as Mobile Joose Inc, a Delaware Corportation on
July 22, 2011, and transferred all its assets to a newly formed Delaware Corporation on
February 21st, 2014,

MoJoose Inc. is an innovative engineering, design and manufacturing company



developing intelligent wireless accessories for sale in the very large multi-billion
dollar cellular and smartphone markets.

Qur highly credentialed engineering team with more than 125 years of combined
experience in RF cellular technology has designed and patented disruptive
technologies that enable them to build the first and only cell phone signal amplifier
that is completely mobile and small enough to fit in a cell phone battery case. No
other cell phone signal booster can do this. Existing cell phone legacy booster
technology consists of two units separated by several feet and connected by a cable so
they are stationary and typically require professional installation.

The flagship product is the MJoose 4 in 1 case, which includes a signal amplifier, extra
battery, and reduced radiation all in stylish protective case. The signal amplifier
improves the cell phone communication signal. It can boost the existing cellular
signal to provide more bars, make connections, stay connected, avoid drop calls,
maintain fast data speeds and deliver high quality signals for voice, data and video
reception on cell phones and other cellular equipped devices in places where the
phone cannot make or hold a connection, or deliver quality voice and data connection

MoJoose is producing a smartphone battery case with 100% more battery that includes
its patented signal amplifier completely enclosed in the case. This will revolutionize
the cell phone experience by providing this substantially improved cell phone signals
and connectivity in a battery case that attaches to the cell phone and can be carried
anywhere in a pocket or purse. It is the only truly mobile signal amplifier in a
smartphone battery case.

The Company is powered by a strong executive team with extensive experience and
expertise in global operations, supply chain management, and high volume
manufacturing. This will enable the company to scale to high volume manufacturing
quickly, while maintaining the highest quality products.

Our executive team has decades of experience working with on-shore and off-shore
contract manufactures (CM’s) and with these relationships, we expect we will be able
to receive favorable payment terms of 90 days or more, and also achieve the best
possible cost of goods sold (COGS).

Our sales and marketing team are world-class experts with deep experience in sales
and marketing of consumer electronics, with a proven track record of building brands
and businesses.

MoJoose has assembled a world-class team of engineering experts to execute on
delivering their patented, award winning, disruptive technology to the market. As well
as continue to develop innovative products for the cellular wireless markets. This
includes wireless charging, international signal boosters, IOT modules for wireless
connectivity, and 5G signal boosters.

It has received FCC, Mexico Certification, Apple MFI Certification, and Six CES
innovations Awards. It also reduces RF Radiation by up to 70%. The product includes



an Integrated Application to show Cell Signal Strength while using the Case
(Samsung).

The Company also has 10 Granted Patents -- 8 US Patents, 1 Mexico Patent, 1 Chinese
patent, and 1 patent pending.

Competitors and Industry
Competitors
We are addressing 2 markets — Battery Cases and Signal Boosters.

The Company has several major competitors in the smartphone battery case market.
Some of the top competitors in this industry include: Mophie and Apple. Mophie and
Apple are the industry leaders and the Company’s primary competition in the
smartphone battery case market. Mophie and Apple are direct competitors of similar
size and development with regards to extra battery. Despite the present competitive
landscape, the Company stands out in the smartphone battery case market because
the Mjoose battery cases are comparable to the competition except that the MJoose
case also provides its patented signal amplifier, which no other battery case can
provide. Mojoose believes this should enable it to capture a large part of this market.

The Mjoose case is a whole new class of consumer electronic product that has never
been available before. This is a major attraction that will drive consumers to purchase
the case, which will increase the overall demand for battery cases.

The Company also has several major competitors in the signal booster market. Some
of the top competitors in this industry include: Weboost, Surecall, and Nextivity. All
three are direct competitors in the signal booster market. However existing signal
boosters consists of two antennas and a signal amp separated by 30 to 50 feet of cable.
If the antenna’s are not separated by 30 feet, the system will oscillate causing
problems for cell phones and the cell towers. The inside antenna usually cover one or
two rooms. These signal boosters and stationary, expensive, and require professional
installation. The mJoose case has the built in patented cell phone signal amplifier that
is completely mobile and fits in a cell phone battery case. The mjoose patented
antenna system, amplifier design, and complex algorithms allow the antennas to be
only 4" apart. No other cell phone signal booster can do this.

The mjoose 4 in 1 case currenlty has no direct competitors and we believe that our
strong patent portfolio will provent any direct competition in the future.

Industry

The Smartphone Battery Case Market was estimated at $5.4B in 2020 and is projected
to reach $9.7B by 2027. The Signal Booster Market is currently estimated at $12.85B in
2022 and the global market size is projected to reach $22.8B by 2028. In addition, it is
a well known fact that the new 5G cell service is very fast, however the downside is the
cell signals do not travel as far, and because of that signal booster / amplitier will be
needed even more. The global 5G technology market was valued at $5.1B in 2020 and



is projected to reach $798B by 2030. The mJoose case works well with the latest 5G
phones , and will be needed even more as the 5G technology rolls out.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Stage

The Company’s technology design and development have been completed. All
certifications have been completed, this includes FCC, IFTEL, UL, UN 38.3 Battery, and

Apple MFI certifications. The products currently being sold online are iphone 6,6s,7,8,
SE 2nd Gen, and SE 3rd Gen.

Roadmap

The Company's efforts for the next 9 months will be focused on launching new
products. We have several planned including: iPhone 12, 12 Pro, 12 Pro Max, 13, 13
Pro, 13 Pro Max, 14 Pro, 14 Pro Max and Samsung S22, §22+, 522 Ultra, A53G. The plan
is to also launch 15W Wireless charging into the new products.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Daniel Ash
Daniel Ash's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Founder and Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: February 21, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee and manage the total operation of the Company.
Daniel Ash has been granted 400,000 stock options which vest over 4 years.

e Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: February 21, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Board members form part of the governing body of the
organization. They are committed to the long-term interests of the organization
and meet regularly to oversee and direct business operations, set policies,
approve business decisions, evaluate executive performances, and fulfill
fiduciary responsibilities. To date, we have not compensated our directors for
their services as board members.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Ash Innovations, LLC
Title: President
Dates of Service: March 01, 2005 - Present



Responsibilities: Consulting - not currently active

Name: Robert Legendre

Robert Legendre's current primary role is with Recently Retired Executive. Robert
Legendre currently services 1-2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board Member

Dates of Service: July 08, 2015 - Present

Responsibilities: Board members form part of the governing body of the
organization. They are committed to the long-term interests of the organization
and meet regularly to oversee and direct business operations, set policies,
approve business decisions, evaluate executive performances, and fulfill
fiduciary responsibilities. To date, we have not compensated our directors for
their services as board members, however Robert is a shareholder. Robert
attends board meetings and reviews and approves corporate governance.

Position: Compensation Committee Board Member
Dates of Service: November 13, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the compensation of all of the officers of the

Company. Robert Legendre has been granted 1,020,000 stock options which vest
over 4 years.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: SEAGATE TECHNOLOGY

Title: SVP Global Supply Chain & Procurement

Dates of Service: February 01, 2013 - November 01, 2021

Responsibilities: Tactical and Strategic Procurement Commodity Management
Master Scheduling & Global Planning Global Sourcing Inbound and Outbound
Logistics & Fulfillment End-to-End Planning and Procurement Business Process
Reverse Logistics & Global Repair Services Oversight for EDS (Systems) & SSD
manufacturing and Test/process Eng Oversight for global Asset management

Name: Howard Ho Yin Chan

Howard Ho Yin Chan 's current primary role is with Belton Technology Group. Howard
Ho Yin Chan currently services 1-2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and otffices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board Member

Dates of Service: July 08, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: Board members form part of the governing body of the



organization. They are committed to the long-term interests of the organization
and meet regularly to oversee and direct business operations, set policies,
approve business decisions, evaluate executive performances, and fulfill
fiduciary responsibilities. To date, we have not compensated our directors for
their services as board members. However, Howard is a shareholder. On
occasion, Howard attends board meetings and reviews and approves corporate
governance,

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Belton Technology Group
Title: Executive Vice President
Dates of Service: April 01, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: Executive responsibilities overseeing the management of the
Company.

Name: Barrett Laban Silver

Barrett Laban Silver's current primary role is with Retired. Barrett Laban Silver
currently services 1-2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: September 13, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Board members form part of the governing body of the
organization. They are committed to the long-term interests of the organization
and meet regularly to oversee and direct business operations, set policies,
approve business decisions, evaluate executive performances, and fulfill
fiduciary responsibilities. To date, we have not compensated our directors for
their services as board members. However, Barrett is a shareholder. Barrett
attends board meetings and reviews and approves corporate governance
documents.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.



These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Common
Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to
enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the
Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor
regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other
information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it's a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of vour family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce,

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how yvou can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the consumer electronics industry. However, that may never
happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this
investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed
The Company, is offering Common Stock in the amount of up to $1,235,000 in this
offering, and may close on any investments that are made. Even if the maximum



amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order
to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons
relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the
Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to
find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of vour investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by



our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may
never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the
product is the result of a change in business model upon the Company’s making a
determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best
interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The security type that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have
agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”), or his or
her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liquidation of our Company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our Company have been paid out.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor is buying has no voting rights attached to them.
This means that you will have no rights in dictating on how the Company will be run.
You are trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that
will grow vour investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our
company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the
creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail.



Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might
result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors
might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings, ” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

Mojoose Inc. was formed on February 21, 2014. Accordingly, the Company has a
limited history upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can
be made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks
associated with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results
as the Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the
entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any
shares once our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. Mojoose Inc.
has incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There
is no assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient
revenues to pay dividends to the holders of the shares.

We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively no revenue. If you

are investing in this company, it’s because you think that the Mjoose Smartphone Case
is a good idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the product
or service, that we can price them right and sell them to enough peoples so that the
Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no
assurance that we will ever be profitable.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly



One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company
owns 10 granted patents and 1 pending patent, trademarks, copyrights, Internet
domain names, and trade secrets. We believe one of the most valuable components of
the Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may
misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to
continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is
important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade
the capital of the Company.

We have pending patent approval’s that might be vulnerable

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
intellectual property such as patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names,
and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We believe one of
the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio.
Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property
portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs
associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company due to its
unregistered intellectual property.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially
and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a
multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.



The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We mav also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

QOur ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as
the FCC (Federal Communications Commission), and other relevant government laws
and regulations. The laws and regulations concerning the selling of product may be
subject to change and if they do then the selling of product may no longer be in the
best interest of the Company. At such point the Company may no longer want to sell
product and therefore your investment in the Company may be affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

MOJOOSE RISK FACTORS
Refer to uploaded MoJoose Risk Factors Document

We may have competition from other companies.

Although the mJoose case does not have direct competition (signal
amplification/battery case) and has strong patent protection through its 10 granted
patents, there are several other companies that provide related products. Some of
these companies are larger and have greater experience and financial resources than
us. Additionally, there may be other substantial companies that will enter the market
either alone or merged with other competitors to compete with us. We cannot
guarantee that we will be able to compete successfully with our current and future



competitors.

Our product is new and unique and contains inherent risks.

QOur product is innovative and new. As such, even with our successful pilot launch, we
cannot be certain of commercial or any other kind of success for us with this product
and cannot guarantee same.

If we do not complete an equity financing of at least $2,000,000, our convertible
promissory notes will be due and payable on December 31, 2022,

The Company has issued unsecured convertible promissory notes in the aggregate
principal amount of $5,219,000. The notes bear interest at the rate of between four
and ten percent per annum and as of July 31, 2022 the total amount of principal and
accrued interest payable under the notes totals $6,380,377. Principal and interest is
pavable at the maturity of the notes on December 31, 2022. The notes are payable
upon the demand of the holders of a majority of the outstanding principal under the
notes. With one exception noted below, the notes provide that upon the Company’s
completion of an equity financing for the gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000 all
principal and accrued interest under the notes will convert to the securities sold in
such financing at a purchase price equal to between 50% and 100% of the offering
price in such financing. In the event the Company does not complete an equity
financing of at least $2,000,000, all principal and interest due on these notes will be
due and payable on December 31, 2022, If the Company does not complete the equity
financing by this due date, it will request an extension of the due date to December 31,
2023, The Company has strong relationships with the Convertible Promissory Note
Holders and believes an extension will be possible, but there is no guarantee that the
extension will be granted and in this scenario the company might default on its
obligations to noteholders.

The Chief Executive Officer does not currently receive a salary for his role with the
Company

The CEO of Mojoose Inc. (Daniel Ash) does not currently receive a salary for his work.
Although he has significant equity in the company, there is some level of risk in
investing in a company whose day-to-day operations are managed by an individual
who does not receive a salary. The Company plans for Daniel to begin receiving a
salary upon a successful financing.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name|Number of Securities Owned |Type of Security Owned|Percentage
Daniel Ash 5,063,182 Common Stock 42.18%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Convertible Promissory Note , Series A
Preferred Stock, Convertible Note (1), Convertible Note (2), Convertible Note (3),
Bridge Convertible Note, Convertible Note (4), Series A-1 Preferred Stock, and
Convertible Promissory Note (2). As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the
Company will be offering up to 427,335 of Series A-1 Preferred Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 15,000,000 with a total of 12,520,467
outstanding.

Voting Rights

Each holder of shares of Common Stock shall be entitled to one vote for each share
thereof held.

Material Rights

The total amount outstanding includes 198,494 shares to be issued pursuant to stock
options, reserved but unissued.

The total amount outstanding includes 1,920,000 shares to be issued pursuant to stock
options issued.

The total amount outstanding includes 197,893 of shares to be issued pursuant to
outstanding warrants

The Below rights were granted to certain holders party to a Stockhodler's Agreement

2. Liquidation Rights

(a) Liquidation Preference. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up
of the Corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of the Preferred Stock
shall be entitled to receive, prior to and in preference to any Distribution of any of the
assets of the Corporation to the holders of the Common Stock by reason of their
ownership of such stock, an amount per share for each share of Preferred Stock held by
them equal to the greater of (i) the Liquidation Preference specified for such share of



Preferred Stock plus any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and (ii) such amount
per share as would have been payable had all shares of Preferred Stock been converted
into Common Stock pursuant to Section 3 immediately prior to such liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation. If upon the liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Corporation, the assets of the Corporation legally available for
distribution to the holders of the Preferred Stock are insufficient to permit the
payment to such holders of the full amounts specified in this Section 2(a). then the
entire assets of the Corporation legally available for distribution shall be distributed
with equal priority and pro rata among the holders of the Preferred Stock in
proportion to the full amounts they would otherwise be entitled to receive pursuant to
this Section 2/a).

(b) Remaining Assets. After the payment or setting aside for payment to the holders of
Preferred Stock of the full amounts specified in Section 2{a) above. the entire
remaining assets of the Corporation legally available for distribution shall be
distributed pro rata to holders of the Common Stock of the Corporation in proportion
to the number of shares of Common Stock held by them.

(c) Reorganization. For purposes of this Section 2, a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Corporation shall be deemed to be occasioned by, or to include, (i)
the acquisition of control of the Corporation by another entity by means of any
transaction or series of related transactions to which the Corporation is party
(including, without limitation, any stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or
consolidation but excluding any sale of stock for capital raising purposes) other than a
transaction or series of related transactions in which the holders of the voting
securities of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior to such transaction or
series of related transactions retain, immediately after such transaction or series of
related transactions, as a result of shares in the Corporation held by such holders prior
to such transaction or series of related transactions, a majority of the total voting
power represented by the outstanding voting securities of the Corporation or such
other surviving or resulting entity (or if the Corporation or such other surviving or
resulting entity is a wholly-owned subsidiary immediately following such acquisition,
its parent); (ii) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets
of the Corporation and its subsidiaries taken as a whole by means of any transaction
or series of related transactions, except where such sale, lease or other disposition is
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation; or (iii) any liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary. The treatment of
any transaction or series of related transactions as a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up pursuant to clause (i) or (ii) of the preceding sentence may be waived with
respect to any series of Preferred Stock by the consent or vote of a majority of the
outstanding shares of such series by the consent or vote of a majority of the
outstanding Preferred Stock (voting on an as-converted basis).

(d) Valuation of Non-Cash Consideration. If any assets of the Corporation distributed
to stockholders in connection with any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the
Corporation are other than cash, then the value of such assets shall be their fair
market value as determined in good faith by the Board, except that anv publicly-



traded securities to be distributed to stockholders in a liquidation, dissolution, or
winding up of the Corporation shall be valued as follows:

(1) if the securities are then traded on a national securities exchange, then the value of
the securities shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities
on such exchange over the ten (10) trading day period ending five (5) trading days
prior to the Distribution;

(ii) if the securities are actively traded over-the-counter, then the value of the
securities shall be deemed to be the average of the closing bid prices of the securities
over the ten (10) trading day period ending five (5) trading days prior to the
Distribution.

In the event of a merger or other acquisition of the Corporation by another entity, the
Distribution date shall be deemed to be the date such transaction closes.

For the purposes of this subsection 2(e), "trading day” shall mean any day which the
exchange or system on which the securities to be distributed are traded is open and
"closing prices” or "closing bid prices” shall be deemed to be: (i) for securities traded
primarily on the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange or a Nasdaqg
market, the last reported trade price or sale price, as the case may be, at 4:00 p.m.,
New York time, on that day and (ii) for securities listed or traded on other exchanges,
markets and systems, the market price as of the end of the regular hours trading
period that is generally accepted as such for such exchange, market or system. If, after
the date hereof, the benchmark times generally accepted in the securities industry for
determining the market price of a stock as of a given trading day shall change from
those set forth above, the fair market value shall be determined as of such other
generally accepted benchmark times.

Tag-Along Provisions.

3.5.1 General. Subject to Section 3.5.8 hereof, and after the application of Section 3.4
hereof, if a Stockholder proposes to Transfer Restricted Securities to any Person
(individually a “Third Party” and collectively, “Third Parties”) in any one transaction
or any series of related transactions, directly or indirectly, such sale or other
disposition shall not be permitted unless such Stockholder (the “Selling Stockholder™)
shall offer (or cause the Third Party to offer) to all the other Stockholders (the “Tag-
Along Parties”) in writing (the “Tag- Along Notice”) the right to elect to include, at
the sole option of each Tag-Along Party, in the sale or other disposition to the Third
Party such number of shares of Restricted Securities owned by such Tag-Along Party
as shall be determined in accordance with Section 3.5.3 (the “Tag- Along Shares™).
The Tag-Along Notice shall state: (1) the Selling Stockholder’s bona fide intention to
sell such Offered Securities; (2) the number and class of securities to be offered for
sale; and (3) the price and terms upon which the Selling Stockholders propose to offer
such Offered Securities.

3.5.2 The Tag-Along Notice shall be delivered promptly following expiration of the
right of the Non-Offering Stockholders, or waiver by each of the Non-Offering



Stockholders of its right, to purchase the Offered Securities pursuant Section 3.4. At
any time within 15 days after the giving of the Tag-Along Notice, each of the Tag-
Along Parties may make an election to include the Tag-Along Shares in such a sale or
Transfer by the Selling Stockholder and deliver to the Company a stock certificate or
certificates representing the Tag- Along Shares, together with a limited power-of-
attorney authorizing the Selling Stockholder to sell or otherwise dispose of such Tag-
Along Shares pursuant to the terms of such Third Party’s offer.

3.5.3 Each of the Tag-Along Parties and the Selling Stockholder shall have the right to
sell or include in the Third Party’s offer, that percentage (the “Tag-Along
Percentage”) of the number of Restricted Securities to be sold to the Third Party equal
to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of (1) the Restricted Securities (treating the
Restricted Securities, other than stock options issued for compensatory purposes, as
having been converted into, or exchanged or exercised for, Common Stock) owned by
such Stockholder, as compared with (2) the aggregate number of shares of Restricted
Securities owned by the Selling Stockholder and Tag-Along Parties electing to sell or
transfer securities pursuant to this Section 3.5 (treating the Restricted Securities,
other than stock options issued for compensatory purposes, as having been converted
into, or exchanged or exercised for, Common Stock). In the event that (A) the
Stockholders in the aggregate elect to sell fewer Tag-Along Shares than they are
entitled to sell in the aggregate and (B) certain Stockholders wish to sell an aggregate
amount in excess of each such Stockholder’s Tag-Along Percentage, then the excess
available Tagl2 Along Shares shall be allocated among such Stockholders pro rata
based upon the number of shares of Restricted Securities (treating the Restricted
Securities, other than stock options issued for compensatory purposes, as having been
converted into, or exchanged or exercised for, Common Stock) owned by such
Stockholders, or as otherwise agreed among such Stockholders.

3.5.4 The purchase from each Tag-Along Party pursuant to this Section 3.5 shall be on
the same terms and conditions, including the price per share, the form of
consideration and the date of sale or other disposition, as are received by the Selling
Stockholder and shall be no less favorable to the sellers than as stated in the Tag-
Along Notice.

3.5.5 Promptly (but in no event later than 5 days) after the consummation of the sale
or other disposition of shares of Restricted Securities of the Selling Stockholder and
the Tag-Along Parties to the Third Party pursuant to the Third Party’s offer, the
Selling Stockholder shall (1) notify such Tag-Along Parties of the completion thereof,
(2) cause to be remitted to each Tag-Along Party the total sales price attributable to
the Restricted Securities which such Tag-Along Party sold or otherwise disposed of
pursuant thereto, and (3) furnish such Tag-Along Parties evidence of the completion
and time of completion of such sale or other disposition and the terms thereof as may
be reasonably requested by the Tag-Along Parties.

3.5.6 If within 15 days after the Tag-Along Notice is given, a Tag-Along Party has not
accepted the offer to make an inclusion election, such Tag-Along Party will be deemed
to have waived any and all of its rights with respect to the sale or other disposition of



the Offered Securities described in the Tag-Along Notice. The Selling Stockholder
shall have 90 days after such 15-day period in which to sell or otherwise dispose of
such Offered Securities to the Third Party at a price and on terms not more favorable
in the aggregate to the Selling Stockholder than were set forth in the Tag-Along
Notice.

3.5.7 If, at the end of such 90-day period, the Selling Stockholder has not completed
the sale of the Offered Securities in accordance with the terms of the Third Party’s
offer, all the restrictions on sale contained in this Agreement with respect to such
Offered Securities owned by the Selling Stockholder shall again be in effect (unless
such 90 day period is extended with the consent of each of the Tag-Along Parties).

3.5.8 Exceptions. Notwithstanding the terms and provisions of Section 3.5.1 hereof,
the tag-along right provided for in this Section 3.5 shall not be applicable to (i) any
repurchase by the Company of Equity Securities from an employee upon termination
of employment; (ii) any Exempt Transfer; or (iii) any Transfer in an Approved Sale.

3.5.9 Relationship to Section 3.4. The provisions of Section 3.4 shall take priority over
this Section 3.5, and nothing in this Section 3.5 shall be construed to relieve any
Offering Stockholder of its obligation to deliver an Offering Notice to each Non-
Offering Stockholder pursuant to the terms of Section 3.4 in connection with such a
proposed transaction.

Convertible Promissory Note

The security will convert into Securities of the class issued in the raise that triggers
the notes and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $3,044,713.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing of at least $2,000,000

Material Rights
Amount outstanding calculated as of 7/51/2022.
4, CONVERSION.

4.1 Automatic Conversion. This Note shall automatically convert, upon the closing of
the Company’s next issuance of preferred stock for capital-raising purposes resulting
in proceeds (individually or in the aggregate) to the Company of at least Two Million
U.S. Dollars (US$2,000,000) (excluding any amounts received in connection with the
conversion of the Notes) (a “Qualifying Financing”), into that whole number of shares
of the securities issued in the Qualifying Financing (the “Automatic Conversion
Shares™) obtained by dividing (a) the then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) eighty
percent (80%) of the price per share paid by investors in the Qualifying Financing.



In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.1: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion at the closing of the Qualifying Financing
and to execute all reasonably necessary documents in connection with the conversion
of this Note (including any definitive stock purchase agreement) that are executed by
the investors in the Qualifying Financing; and (ii) the Company shall, at its sole cost
and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver certificates
representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable Automatic Conversion
Shares and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal that portion of the Loan
Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional Automatic Conversion
Share pursuant to this Section 4.1.

4.2 Optional Conversion on Maturity Date. In the event the Notes are not
automatically converted prior to the Maturity Date, then on the Maturity Date, the
Lender shall have the option to convert, by delivering written notice to the Company,
the then-outstanding Loan Balance of this Note into that whole number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company (the “Common Stock™), obtained by dividing (a) the
then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) the per share price calculated by dividing (i)
Twenty Million U.S. Dollars (US$20,000,000) by (ii) the number of shares of capital
stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such conversion (calculated
on a fully-diluted basis, assuming the exercise and conversion of all outstanding
exercisable or convertible securities, but not including any shares of Common Stock
issuable in connection with the conversion of the Notes). If the Requisite Holders elect
to convert pursuant to this Section 4.2, then this Note, and all Notes, shall
automatically convert into Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.2: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion and to execute all reasonably necessary
documents in connection with the conversion of this Note; and (ii) the Company shall
at its sole cost and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver
certificates representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Common Stock and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal to that portion of
the Loan Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional share of
Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

1.0 MATURITY DATE.

Unless converted in full pursuant to Section 4, the then-outstanding Loan Balance
shall be due and payable on the Maturity Date. The “Maturity Date” shall mean the
earliest of (a) that date, on or after December 31, 2022, which is thirty (30) days
following the date on which (i) the Company receives written demand of repayment
from the Lenders or holders of Notes representing at least fifty percent (50%) of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding (the “Requisite Holders,”
which may consist of one or more holders) or (ii) the Company delivers written notice
of repayment to the Lenders, and (b) the closing of a transaction that results in a
Change of Control (as defined in Section 5 below). Until the Maturity Date, this Note
shall remain outstanding and continue to accrue interest at the rate set forth herein,
subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof including those relating to



conversion into equity securities. Unless repayment is demanded by the Lender under
clause (a)(i) above, the Company shall give the Lender at least five (5) days prior
written notice of the Maturity Date in order to allow the Lender to exercise its
optional conversion rights pursuant to Section 4.2 below.

Series A Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 1,800,720 with a total of 1,800,720 outstanding.
Voting Rights

Each holder of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to the number of votes equal to the
number of shares of Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held by
such holder could be converted as of the record date. The holders of shares of the
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote on all matters on which the Common Stock
shall be entitled to vote. Holders of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to notice of any
stockholders’ meeting in the same manner as holders of Common Stock. Fractional
votes shall not, however, be permitted and any fractional voting rights resulting from
the above formula (after aggregating all shares into which shares of Preferred Stock
held by each holder could be converted), shall be disregarded.

Material Rights

Conversion Rights

Holder of Series A Preferred Stock have certain conversion rights. See exhibit F for
additional detail.

Anti-dilution Rights

Holder of Series A Preferred Stock have certain anti-dilution rights. See exhibit F for
additional detail.

The Below rights were granted to certain holders party to a Stockhodler's Agreement

2. Liquidation Rights

(a) Liquidation Preference. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up
of the Corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of the Preferred Stock
shall be entitled to receive, prior to and in preference to any Distribution of any of the
assets of the Corporation to the holders of the Common Stock by reason of their
ownership of such stock, an amount per share for each share of Preferred Stock held by
them equal to the greater of (i) the Liquidation Preference specified for such share of
Preferred Stock plus any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and (i) such amount
per share as would have been payable had all shares of Preferred Stock been converted
into Common Stock pursuant to Section 3 immediately prior to such liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation. If upon the liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Corporation, the assets of the Corporation legally available for
distribution to the holders of the Preferred Stock are insufficient to permit the



payment to such holders of the full amounts specified in this Section 2(a). then the
entire assets of the Corporation legally available for distribution shall be distributed
with equal priority and pro rata among the holders of the Preferred Stock in
proportion to the full amounts they would otherwise be entitled to receive pursuant to
this Section 2/a).

(b) Remaining Assets. After the payment or setting aside for payment to the holders of
Preferred Stock of the full amounts specified in Section 2{a) above. the entire
remaining assets of the Corporation legally available for distribution shall be
distributed pro rata to holders of the Common Stock of the Corporation in proportion
to the number of shares of Common Stock held by them.

(¢) Reorganization. For purposes of this Section 2, a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Corporation shall be deemed to be occasioned by, or to include, (i)
the acquisition of control of the Corporation by another entity by means of any
transaction or series of related transactions to which the Corporation is party
(including, without limitation, any stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or
consolidation but excluding anv sale of stock for capital raising purposes) other than a
transaction or series of related transactions in which the holders of the voting
securities of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior to such transaction or
series of related transactions retain, immediately after such transaction or series of
related transactions, as a result of shares in the Corporation held by such holders prior
to such transaction or series of related transactions, a majority of the total voting
power represented by the outstanding voting securities of the Corporation or such
other surviving or resulting entity (or if the Corporation or such other surviving or
resulting entity is a wholly-owned subsidiary immediately following such acquisition,
its parent); (ii) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets
of the Corporation and its subsidiaries taken as a whole by means of any transaction
or series of related transactions, except where such sale, lease or other disposition is
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation; or (iii) any liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary. The treatment of
any transaction or series of related transactions as a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up pursuant to clause (i) or (ii) of the preceding sentence may be waived with
respect to any series of Preferred Stock by the consent or vote of a majority of the
outstanding shares of such series by the consent or vote of a majority of the
outstanding Preferred Stock (voting on an as-converted basis).

(d) Valuation of Non-Cash Consideration. If any assets of the Corporation distributed
to stockholders in connection with any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the
Corporation are other than cash, then the value of such assets shall be their fair
market value as determined in good faith by the Board, except that any publicly-
traded securities to be distributed to stockholders in a liquidation, dissolution, or
winding up of the Corporation shall be valued as follows:

(i) if the securities are then traded on a national securities exchange, then the value of
the securities shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities
on such exchange over the ten (10) trading day period ending five (5) trading days



prior to the Distribution;

(ii) if the securities are actively traded over-the-counter, then the value of the
securities shall be deemed to be the average of the closing bid prices of the securities
over the ten (10) trading day period ending five (5) trading days prior to the
Distribution.

In the event of a merger or other acquisition of the Corporation by another entity, the
Distribution date shall be deemed to be the date such transaction closes.

For the purposes of this subsection 2(e), "trading day” shall mean any day which the
exchange or system on which the securities to be distributed are traded is open and
"closing prices” or "closing bid prices” shall be deemed to be: (i) for securities traded
primarily on the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange or a Nasdaq
market, the last reported trade price or sale price, as the case may be, at 4:00 p.m.,
New York time, on that day and (ii) for securities listed or traded on other exchanges,
markets and systems, the market price as of the end of the regular hours trading
period that is generally accepted as such for such exchange, market or system. If, after
the date hereof, the benchmark times generally accepted in the securities industry for
determining the market price of a stock as of a given trading day shall change from
those set forth above, the fair market value shall be determined as of such other
generally accepted benchmark times.

Tag-Along Provisions.

3.5.1 General. Subject to Section 3.5.8 hereof, and after the application of Section 3.4
hereof, if a Stockholder proposes to Transfer Restricted Securities to any Person
(individually a “Third Party” and collectively, “Third Parties”) in any one transaction
or any series of related transactions, directly or indirectly, such sale or other
disposition shall not be permitted unless such Stockholder (the “Selling Stockholder™)
shall offer (or cause the Third Party to offer) to all the other Stockholders (the “Tag-
Along Parties™) in writing (the "Tag- Along Notice™) the right to elect to include, at
the sole option of each Tag-Along Party, in the sale or other disposition to the Third
Party such number of shares of Restricted Securities owned by such Tag-Along Party
as shall be determined in accordance with Section 3.5.3 (the “Tag- Along Shares™).
The Tag-Along Notice shall state: (1) the Selling Stockholder’s bona fide intention to
sell such Offered Securities; (2) the number and class of securities to be offered for
sale; and (3) the price and terms upon which the Selling Stockholders propose to offer
such Offered Securities.

3.5.2 The Tag-Along Notice shall be delivered promptly following expiration of the
right of the Non-Offering Stockholders, or waiver by each of the Non-Offering
Stockholders of its right, to purchase the Offered Securities pursuant Section 3.4. At
any time within 15 days after the giving of the Tag-Along Notice, each of the Tag-
Along Parties may make an election to include the Tag-Along Shares in such a sale or
Transfer by the Selling Stockholder and deliver to the Company a stock certificate or
certificates representing the Tag- Along Shares, together with a limited power-of-
attorney authorizing the Selling Stockholder to sell or otherwise dispose of such Tag-



Along Shares pursuant to the terms of such Third Party’s offer.

3.5.3 Each of the Tag-Along Parties and the Selling Stockholder shall have the right to
sell or include in the Third Party’s offer, that percentage (the "Tag-Along
Percentage”) of the number of Restricted Securities to be sold to the Third Party equal
to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of (1) the Restricted Securities (treating the
Restricted Securities, other than stock options issued for compensatory purposes, as
having been converted into, or exchanged or exercised for, Common Stock) owned by
such Stockholder, as compared with (2) the aggregate number of shares of Restricted
Securities owned by the Selling Stockholder and Tag-Along Parties electing to sell or
transfer securities pursuant to this Section 3.5 (treating the Restricted Securities,
other than stock options issued for compensatory purposes, as having been converted
into, or exchanged or exercised for, Common Stock). In the event that (A) the
Stockholders in the aggregate elect to sell fewer Tag-Along Shares than they are
entitled to sell in the aggregate and (B) certain Stockholders wish to sell an aggregate
amount in excess of each such Stockholder’s Tag-Along Percentage, then the excess
available Tagl2 Along Shares shall be allocated among such Stockholders pro rata
based upon the number of shares of Restricted Securities (treating the Restricted
Securities, other than stock options issued for compensatory purposes, as having been
converted into, or exchanged or exercised for, Common Stock) owned by such
Stockholders, or as otherwise agreed among such Stockholders.

3.5.4 The purchase from each Tag-Along Party pursuant to this Section 3.5 shall be on
the same terms and conditions, including the price per share, the form of
consideration and the date of sale or other disposition, as are received by the Selling
Stockholder and shall be no less favorable to the sellers than as stated in the Tag-
Along Notice.

3.5.5 Promptly (but in no event later than 5 days) after the consummation of the sale
or other disposition of shares of Restricted Securities of the Selling Stockholder and
the Tag-Along Parties to the Third Party pursuant to the Third Party’s offer, the
Selling Stockholder shall (1) notify such Tag-Along Parties of the completion thereof,
(2) cause to be remitted to each Tag-Along Party the total sales price attributable to
the Restricted Securities which such Tag-Along Party sold or otherwise disposed of
pursuant thereto, and (3) furnish such Tag-Along Parties evidence of the completion
and time of completion of such sale or other disposition and the terms thereof as may
be reasonably requested by the Tag-Along Parties.

3.5.6 If within 15 days after the Tag-Along Notice is given, a Tag-Along Party has not
accepted the offer to make an inclusion election, such Tag-Along Party will be deemed
to have waived any and all of its rights with respect to the sale or other disposition of
the Offered Securities described in the Tag-Along Notice. The Selling Stockholder
shall have 90 days after such 15-day period in which to sell or otherwise dispose of
such Offered Securities to the Third Party at a price and on terms not more favorable
in the aggregate to the Selling Stockholder than were set forth in the Tag-Along
Notice.



3.5.7 If, at the end of such 90-day period, the Selling Stockholder has not completed
the sale of the Offered Securities in accordance with the terms of the Third Party’s
offer, all the restrictions on sale contained in this Agreement with respect to such
Offered Securities owned by the Selling Stockholder shall again be in effect (unless
such 90 day period is extended with the consent of each of the Tag-Along Parties).

3.5.8 Exceptions. Notwithstanding the terms and provisions of Section 3.5.1 hereof,
the tag-along right provided for in this Section 3.5 shall not be applicable to (i) any
repurchase by the Company of Equity Securities from an employee upon termination
of employment; (ii) any Exempt Transfer; or (iii) any Transfer in an Approved Sale.

3.5.9 Relationship to Section 3.4. The provisions of Section 3.4 shall take priority over
this Section 3.5, and nothing in this Section 3.5 shall be construed to relieve any
Offering Stockholder of its obligation to deliver an Offering Notice to each Non-
Offering Stockholder pursuant to the terms of Section 3.4 in connection with such a
proposed transaction.

Convertible Note (1)

The security will convert into Preferred stock upon automatic conversion and common
stock upon optional conversion (see details below) and the terms of the Convertible

Note (1) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $804,482.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 30.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: See Material Information below for conversion information

Material Rights
Amount outstanding calculated as of 7/51/2022.

4. CONVERSION.

4.1 Automatic Conversion. This Note shall automatically convert, upon the closing of
the Company’s next issuance of preferred stock for capital-raising purposes resulting
in proceeds (individually or in the aggregate) to the Company of at least Two Million
U.S. Dollars (US$2,000,000) (excluding any amounts received in connection with the
conversion of the Notes) (a “Qualifying Financing”), into that whole number of shares
of the securities issued in the Qualifying Financing (the “Automatic Conversion
Shares™) obtained by dividing (a) the then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) seventy
percent (70%) of the price per share paid by investors in the Qualifying Financing.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.1: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion at the closing of the Qualifying Financing
and to execute all reasonably necessary documents in connection with the conversion
of this Note (including any definitive stock purchase agreement) that are executed by



the investors in the Qualifying Financing; and (ii) the Company shall, at its sole cost
and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver certificates
representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable Automatic Conversion
Shares and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal that portion of the Loan
Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional Automatic Conversion
Share pursuant to this Section 4.1.

4.2 Optional Conversion on Maturity Date. In the event the Notes are not
automatically converted prior to the Maturity Date, then on the Maturity Date, the
Lender shall have the option to convert, by delivering written notice to the Company,
the then-outstanding Loan Balance of this Note into that whole number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company (the “Common Stock™), obtained by dividing (a) the
then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) the per share price calculated by dividing (i)
Twenty Million U.S. Dollars (US$20,000,000) by (ii) the number of shares of capital
stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such conversion (calculated
on a fully-diluted basis, assuming the exercise and conversion of all outstanding
exercisable or convertible securities, but not including any shares of Common Stock
issuable in connection with the conversion of the Notes). If the Requisite Holders elect
to convert pursuant to this Section 4.2, then this Note, and all Notes, shall
automatically convert into Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.2: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion and to execute all reasonably necessary
documents in connection with the conversion of this Note; and (ii) the Company shall
at its sole cost and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver
certificates representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Common Stock and shall pav to the Lender cash in an amount equal to that portion of
the Loan Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional share of
Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

1.0 MATURITY DATE.

Unless converted in full pursuant to Section 4, the then-outstanding Loan Balance
shall be due and payable on the Maturity Date. The “Maturity Date” shall mean the
earliest of (a) that date, on or after December 31, 2022, which is thirty (30) days
following the date on which (i) the Company receives written demand of repayment
from the Lenders or holders of Notes representing at least fifty percent (50%) of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding (the “Requisite Holders,”
which may consist of one or more holders) or (ii) the Company delivers written notice
of repayment to the Lenders, and (b) the closing of a transaction that results in a
Change of Control (as defined in Section 5 below). Until the Maturity Date, this Note
shall remain outstanding and continue to accrue interest at the rate set forth herein,
subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof including those relating to
conversion into equity securities. Unless repayment is demanded by the Lender under
clause (a)(i) above, the Company shall give the Lender at least five (5) days prior
written notice of the Maturity Date in order to allow the Lender to exercise its
optional conversion rights pursuant to Section 4.2 below.



Convertible Note (2)

The security will convert into Preferred stock upon automatic conversion and common
stock upon optional conversion (see details below) and the terms of the Convertible
Note (2) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $92,772.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 50.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: See Material Information below for conversion information

Material Rights
Amount outstanding calculated as of 7/31/2022.

4. CONVERSION.

4.1 Automatic Conversion. This Note shall automatically convert, upon the closing of
the Company’s next issuance of preferred stock for capital-raising purposes resulting
in proceeds (individually or in the aggregate) to the Company of at least Two Million
U.S. Dollars (US$2,000,000) (excluding any amounts received in connection with the
conversion of the Notes) (a “Qualifying Financing™), into that whole number of shares
of the securities issued in the Qualifying Financing (the “Automatic Conversion
Shares™) obtained by dividing (a) the then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) fifty
percent (50%) of the price per share paid by investors in the Qualifying Financing.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.1: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion at the closing of the Qualifying Financing
and to execute all reasonably necessary documents in connection with the conversion
of this Note (including any definitive stock purchase agreement) that are executed by
the investors in the Qualifying Financing; and (ii) the Company shall, at its sole cost
and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver certificates
representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable Automatic Conversion
Shares and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal that portion of the Loan
Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional Automatic Conversion
Share pursuant to this Section 4.1.

4.2 Optional Conversion on Maturity Date. In the event the Notes are not
automatically converted prior to the Maturity Date, then on the Maturity Date, the
Lender shall have the option to convert, by delivering written notice to the Company,
the then-outstanding Loan Balance of this Note into that whole number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company (the “Common Stock”), obtained by dividing (a) the
then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) the per share price calculated by dividing (i)
Twenty Million U.S. Dollars (US$20,000,000) by (ii) the number of shares of capital
stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such conversion (calculated
on a fully-diluted basis, assuming the exercise and conversion of all outstanding



exercisable or convertible securities, but not including any shares of Common Stock
issuable in connection with the conversion of the Notes). If the Requisite Holders elect
to convert pursuant to this Section 4.2, then this Note, and all Notes, shall
automatically convert into Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.2: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion and to execute all reasonably necessary
documents in connection with the conversion of this Note; and (ii) the Company shall
at its sole cost and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver
certificates representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Commeon Stock and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal to that portion of
the Loan Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional share of
Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

1.0 MATURITY DATE.

Unless converted in full pursuant to Section 4, the then-outstanding Loan Balance
shall be due and payable on the Maturity Date. The “Maturity Date” shall mean the
earliest of (a) that date, on or after December 31, 2024, which is thirty (30) days
following the date on which (i) the Company receives written demand of repayment
from the Lenders or holders of Notes representing at least fifty percent (50%) of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding (the “Requisite Holders,”
which may consist of one or more holders) or (ii) the Company delivers written notice
of repayment to the Lenders, and (b) the closing of a transaction that results in a
Change of Control (as defined in Section 5 below). Until the Maturity Date, this Note
shall remain outstanding and continue to accrue interest at the rate set forth herein,
subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof including those relating to
conversion into equity securities. Unless repayment is demanded by the Lender under
clause (a)(i) above, the Company shall give the Lender at least five (5) days prior
written notice of the Maturity Date in order to allow the Lender to exercise its
optional conversion rights pursuant to Section 4.2 below.

Convertible Note (3)

The security will convert into Preferred stock upon automatic conversion and common
stock upon optional conversion (see details below) and the terms of the Convertible
Note (3) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $574,370.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 50.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: See Material Information below for conversion information

Material Rights

Amount outstanding calculated as of 7/51/2022.



4. CONVERSION.

4.1 Automatic Conversion. This Note shall automatically convert, upon the closing of
the Company’s next issuance of preferred stock for capital-raising purposes resulting
in proceeds (individually or in the aggregate) to the Company of at least Two Million
U.S. Dollars (US$2,000,000) (excluding any amounts received in connection with the
conversion of the Notes) (a “Qualifying Financing™), into that whole number of shares
of the securities issued in the Qualifying Financing (the “Automatic Conversion
Shares™) obtained by dividing (a) the then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) fifty
percent (50%) of the price per share paid by investors in the Qualifying Financing.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.1: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion at the closing of the Qualifying Financing
and to execute all reasonably necessary documents in connection with the conversion
of this Note (including any definitive stock purchase agreement) that are executed by
the investors in the Qualifying Financing; and (ii) the Company shall, at its sole cost
and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver certificates
representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable Automatic Conversion
Shares and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal that portion of the Loan
Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional Automatic Conversion
Share pursuant to this Section 4.1.

4.2 Optional Conversion on Maturity Date. In the event the Notes are not
automatically converted prior to the Maturity Date, then on the Maturity Date, the
Lender shall have the option to convert, by delivering written notice to the Company,
the then-outstanding Loan Balance of this Note into that whole number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company (the “Common Stock”), obtained by dividing (a) the
then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) the per share price calculated by dividing (i)
Twenty Million U.S. Dollars (US$20,000,000) by (ii) the number of shares of capital
stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such conversion (calculated
on a fully-diluted basis, assuming the exercise and conversion of all outstanding
exercisable or convertible securities, but not including any shares of Common Stock
issuable in connection with the conversion of the Notes). If the Requisite Holders elect
to convert pursuant to this Section 4.2, then this Note, and all Notes, shall
automatically convert into Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.2: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion and to execute all reasonably necessary
documents in connection with the conversion of this Note; and (i1) the Company shall
at its sole cost and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver
certificates representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Commeon Stock and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal to that portion of
the Loan Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional share of
Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

1.0 MATURITY DATE.

Unless converted in full pursuant to Section 4, the then-outstanding Loan Balance



shall be due and payable on the Maturity Date. The “Maturity Date” shall mean the
earliest of (a) that date, on or after December 31, 2022, which is thirty (30) days
following the date on which (i) the Company receives written demand of repayment
from the Lenders or holders of Notes representing at least fifty percent (50%) of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding (the “Requisite Holders,”
which may consist of one or more holders) or (ii) the Company delivers written notice
of repayment to the Lenders, and (b) the closing of a transaction that results in a
Change of Control (as defined in Section 5 below). Until the Maturity Date, this Note
shall remain outstanding and continue to accrue interest at the rate set forth herein,
subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof including those relating to
conversion into equity securities. Unless repayment is demanded by the Lender under
clause (a)(i) above, the Company shall give the Lender at least five (5) days prior
written notice of the Maturity Date in order to allow the Lender to exercise its
optional conversion rights pursuant to Section 4.2 below.

Bridge Convertible Note

The security will convert into Upon conversion, the investor will receive the same
class of security issued in the qualifying financing with piggy-back registration rights.
and the terms of the Bridge Convertible Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $266,396.00

Maturity Date; June 30, 2023

Interest Rate: 10.0%

Discount Rate: 50.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: $3M fundraising round (a "Qualified Financing")

Material Rights
Amount outstanding calculated as of 7/51/2022.

Upon the closing a Qualifying Financing of the equity round (Gross proceeds to the
company before commissions of $5M) the bridge investor has the choice of:

1. Automatic conversion in exchange for either:

(A) Cash Payvment of principal and interest due and (B) shares of the class of equity
sold in the Qualifying Financing in the amount of 50% of the number of shares that the
Cash Payment could acquire at a price per share that is the offering price of the
Qualifying Round, or

2. Automatic conversion in exchange for a number of shares of the class of equity sold
in the Qualifving Round equal to 2X the number of shares that the Cash Payment
could acquire at a price per share that is the offering price of the Qualifying Round,
and no cash payvment.

Convertible Note (4)



The security will convert into Preferred stock upon automatic conversion and common
stock upon optional conversion (see details below) and the terms of the Convertible
Note (4) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,092,822.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

Interest Rate: 8.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: See Material Information below for conversion information

Material Rights
Amount outstanding calculated as of 7/51/2022.
4, CONVERSION.

4.1 Automatic Conversion. This Note shall automatically convert, upon the closing of
the Company’s next issuance of preferred stock for capital-raising purposes resulting
in proceeds (individually or in the aggregate) to the Company of at least Two Million
U.S. Dollars (US$2,000,000) (excluding any amounts received in connection with the
conversion of the Notes) (a “Qualifying Financing™), into that whole number of shares
of the securities issued in the Qualifying Financing (the “Automatic Conversion
Shares”) obtained by dividing (a) the then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) seventy
percent (70%) of the price per share paid by investors in the Qualifying Financing.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.1: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion at the closing of the Qualifying Financing
and to execute all reasonably necessary documents in connection with the conversion
of this Note (including any definitive stock purchase agreement) that are executed by
the investors in the Qualifying Financing; and (ii) the Company shall, at its sole cost
and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver certificates
representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable Automatic Conversion
Shares and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal that portion of the Loan
Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional Automatic Conversion
Share pursuant to this Section 4.1.

4.2 Optional Conversion on Maturity Date. In the event the Notes are not
automatically converted prior to the Maturity Date, then on the Maturity Date, the
Lender shall have the option to convert, by delivering written notice to the Company,
the then-outstanding Loan Balance of this Note into that whole number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company (the “Common Stock™), obtained by dividing (a) the
then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) the per share price calculated by dividing (i)
Twenty Million U.S. Dollars (US$20,000,000) by (ii) the number of shares of capital
stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such conversion (calculated
on a fully-diluted basis, assuming the exercise and conversion of all outstanding
exercisable or convertible securities, but not including any shares of Common Stock
issuable in connection with the conversion of the Notes). If the Requisite Holders elect



to convert pursuant to this Section 4.2, then this Note, and all Notes, shall
automatically convert into Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.2: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion and to execute all reasonably necessary
documents in connection with the conversion of this Note; and (ii) the Company shall
at its sole cost and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver
certificates representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Commeon Stock and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal to that portion of
the Loan Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional share of
Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

1.0 MATURITY DATE.

Unless converted in full pursuant to Section 4, the then-outstanding Loan Balance
shall be due and payable on the Maturity Date. The “Maturity Date” shall mean the
earliest of (a) that date, on or after December 31, 2022, which is thirty (30) days
following the date on which (i) the Company receives written demand of repayment
from the Lenders or holders of Notes representing at least fifty percent (50%) of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding (the “Requisite Holders,”
which may consist of one or more holders) or (ii) the Company delivers written notice
of repayment to the Lenders, and (b) the closing of a transaction that results in a
Change of Control (as defined in Section 5 below). Until the Maturity Date, this Note
shall remain outstanding and continue to accrue interest at the rate set forth herein,
subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof including those relating to
conversion into equity securities. Unless repayment is demanded by the Lender under
clause (a)(i) above, the Company shall give the Lender at least five (5) days prior
written notice of the Maturity Date in order to allow the Lender to exercise its
optional conversion rights pursuant to Section 4.2 below.

Series A-1 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 5,540,509 with a total of 2,938,781 outstanding.
Voting Rights

There are no voting rights associated with Series A-1 Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

The amount outstanding includes 2, 754,424 shares to be issued upon the conversion
of the Company's convertible notes. These notes will only convert into shares if the
company raises $2,000,000 or more in an equity financing where preferred stock is
sold. Please see convertible note entries in this section, Dilution, Risk Factors and
Liguidity for additional information.

The amount outstanding includes 184,357 shares to be issued upon the conversion of
the Company s Bridge Convertible Notes. These notes will only convert into shares if
the company raises $3,000,000 or more in an equity financing where company



securities is sold. Please see convertible note entries in this section, Dilution, Risk
Factors and Liquidity for additional information.

Conversion Rights

Holder of Series A-1 Preferred Stock have certain conversion rights. See exhibit F for
additional detail.

Anti-dilution Rights

Holder of Series A-1 Preferred Stock have certain anti-dilution rights. See exhibit F for
additional detail.

Convertible Promissory Note (2)

The security will convert into Securities of the class issued in the raise that triggers
the notes and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note (2) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $304,822.00

Maturity Date; December 31, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 0.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing of at least $2,000,000

Material Rights

Amount outstanding calculated as of 7/51/2022.

4. CONVERSION.

4.1 Automatic Conversion. This Note shall automatically convert, upon the closing of
the Company’s next issuance of preferred stock for capital-raising purposes resulting
in proceeds (individually or in the aggregate) to the Company of at least Two Million
U.S. Dollars (US$2,000,000) (excluding any amounts received in connection with the
conversion of the Notes) (a “Qualifying Financing”), into that whole number of shares
of the securities issued in the Qualifying Financing (the “Automatic Conversion
Shares™) obtained by dividing (a) the then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) the price
per share paid by investors in the Qualifying Financing.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.1: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion at the closing of the Qualifying Financing
and to execute all reasonably necessary documents in connection with the conversion
of this Note (including any definitive stock purchase agreement) that are executed by
the investors in the Qualifying Financing; and (ii) the Company shall, at its sole cost
and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver certificates
representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable Automatic Conversion
Shares and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal that portion of the Loan
Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional Automatic Conversion



Share pursuant to this Section 4.1.

4.2 Optional Conversion on Maturity Date. In the event the Notes are not
automatically converted prior to the Maturity Date, then on the Maturity Date, the
Lender shall have the option to convert, by delivering written notice to the Company,
the then-outstanding Loan Balance of this Note into that whole number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company (the “Common Stock™), obtained by dividing (a) the
then-outstanding Loan Balance by (b) the per share price calculated by dividing (i)
Twenty Million U.S. Dollars (US$20,000,000) by (ii) the number of shares of capital
stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such conversion (calculated
on a fully-diluted basis, assuming the exercise and conversion of all outstanding
exercisable or convertible securities, but not including any shares of Common Stock
issuable in connection with the conversion of the Notes). If the Requisite Holders elect
to convert pursuant to this Section 4.2, then this Note, and all Notes, shall
automatically convert into Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2.

In the event of the conversion of this Note pursuant to this Section 4.2: (i) the Lender
agrees to surrender this Note for conversion and to execute all reasonably necessary
documents in connection with the conversion of this Note; and (ii) the Company shall
at its sole cost and reasonably promptly following such delivery, issue and deliver
certificates representing the number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Commeon Stock and shall pay to the Lender cash in an amount equal to that portion of
the Loan Balance, if any, that would otherwise convert into a fractional share of
Common Stock pursuant to this Section 4.2,

1.0 MATURITY DATE.

Unless converted in full pursuant to Section 4, the then-outstanding Loan Balance
shall be due and payable on the Maturity Date. The “Maturity Date” shall mean the
earliest of (a) that date, on or after December 31, 2022, which is thirty (30) days
following the date on which (i) the Company receives written demand of repayment
from the Lenders or holders of Notes representing at least fifty percent (50%) of the
ageregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding (the “Requisite Holders,”
which may consist of one or more holders) or (ii) the Company delivers written notice
of repayment to the Lenders, and (b) the closing of a transaction that results in a
Change of Control (as defined in Section 5 below). Until the Maturity Date, this Note
shall remain outstanding and continue to accrue interest at the rate set forth herein,
subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof including those relating to
conversion into equity securities. Unless repayment is demanded by the Lender under
clause (a)(i) above, the Company shall give the Lender at least five (5) days prior
written notice of the Maturity Date in order to allow the Lender to exercise its
optional conversion rights pursuant to Section 4.2 below.

What it means to be a minority holder

The security type that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have



agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”), or his or
her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liquidation of our Company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our Company have been paid out.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

The Company has issued unsecured convertible promissory notes in theaggregate
principal amount of $5,219,000. The notes bear interest at the rate of between four
and ten percent per annum and as of July 31, 2022 the total amount of principal and
accrued interest payable under the notes totals $6,380,377. Principal and interest is
payable at the maturity of the notes on December 31, 2022. The notes are payable
upon the demand of the holders of a majority of the outstanding principal under the
notes. With one exception noted below, the notes provide that upon the Company’s
completion of an equity financing for the gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000 all
principal and accrued interest under the notes will convert to the securities sold in
such financing at a purchase price equal to between 50% and 100% of the offering
price in such financing.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e [nanIPO;
¢ Tothe company;
* To an accredited investor; and

¢ To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust



controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $200,000.00
Use of proceeds: General working capital
Date: February 06, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $248,000.00
Use of proceeds: General working capital
Date: May 31, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Revenue

Revenue for fiscal year 2021 was $71,154, compared to fiscal year 2020 revenue of
$34,623. The revenue from 2021 was a combined total from products sales and PPP
loan, with products sales being $13,527. Both years revenue is a result of our pilot
launch of the mJoose 4 in 1 smartphone case. Although the pilot launch was
successful, the revenue was very limited by the COVID-19 global pandemic, which
caused supply chain, limited inventory, and funding delays. As we focus on our
commercial launch in the U.S. market, we expect a significant increase in sales going



forward.
Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold in 2021 was $3,303, a decrease of approximately $2,029, from costs
of $5,332 in fiscal year 2020. The reduction was due to the quantity of product sold and
having raw materials on hand at our contract manufacturing facility.

Gross Margins

Gross Margins for 2021 and 2020 were $67,851 ($10,224 product sales) and $29,290,
respectively, with the decrease reflecting the impact of the COVID-19 global
pandemic.

Expenses

The Company’s expenses consist of, among other things, compensation and benefits,
marketing and sales expenses, fees for professional services and patents, research and
development expenses. Expenses in 2021 decreased $123,819 from 2020.
Approximately $100,000 of this decrease was due to decreased compensation and
benefits costs. The Company reduced staffing to 3 fulltime employees in 2021.

Historical results and cash flows:

The iPhone 8 mJoose case received certification mid 2019 and in early 2020 we were in
the final stages of certification for the iphone 10/11 mJoose case with Apple when
COVID-19 hit and the Apple / UL test facility in South China shut down. Our pilot
launch was with the limited quantity of iPhone 8 product that we had received from
our Contract Manufacturer in Malaysia before the pandemic shut them down. COVID-
19 had a major impact on the mjoose pilot launch, and that is why, once funded we
will be able start a proper commercial launch.

We believe that historical cash flows are not indicative of the revenue and cash flows
expected for the future because we have not yet obtained sufficient funding to start
our commercial launch, including sales and marketing, of the products. Past cash was
primarily generated through equity and debt financing, and PPP Loans from the SBA.
The goal is to attain sufficient funds to start the commercial launch and marketing of
our products, which will generate profitably and a positive cash flow.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of August 9, 2022, the Company has capital resources available of 15,439 in cash on
hand and is pursuing additional capital from investors in Crowdfunding and bridge
loan financing.

So far in 2022 the Company has raised an additional $90,000 in cash of which $25,000



was received in July, 2022. The Company has access to additional capital from our lead
investor and major shareholders on an as needed basis.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations. These
funds are required to support the commerical launch, including sales and marketing of
our products.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company has, 90% will be made up of funds
raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

The Company has issued unsecured convertible promissory notes in the aggregate
principal amount of $5,219,000. The notes bear interest at the rate of between four
and ten percent per annum and as of July 31, 2022 the total amount of principal and
accrued interest payable under the notes totals $6,380,377. Principal and interest is
payable at the maturity of the notes on December 31, 2022. The notes are payable
upon the demand of the holders of a majority of the outstanding principal under the
notes. With one exception noted below, the notes provide that upon the Company’s
completion of an equity financing for the gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000 all
principal and accrued interest under the notes will convert to the securities sold in
such financing at a purchase price equal to between 50% and 100% of the offering
price in such financing. In the event the Company does not complete an equity
financing of at least $2,000,000, all principal and interest due on these notes will be
due and pavable on December 31, 2022. If the Company does not complete the equity
financing by this due date, it will request an extension of the due date to December 31,
2023, The Company has strong relationships with the Convertible Promissory Note
Holders and believes an extension will be possible, but there is no guarantee that the
extension will be granted and in this scenario the company might default on its
obligations to noteholders.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for approximately two months. This would be based on paying the
minimum expenses until additional funding is raised.



How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for approximately thirteen months. This is based on the going
forward monthly burn rate of $80,000 for expenses related to G&A $50,000, Sales and
marketing $15,000, and R&D $15,000.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital
including institutional based and private equity funds. There are no funding sources
avalalble at this time, but they may become an available source in the future.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: SBA Loan
Amount Owed: $8,500.00
Interest Rate: 3.75%
Maturity Date: May 25, 2050

e Creditor: PPP LOAN
Amount Owed: $9,469.13
Interest Rate: 1.0%
Maturity Date: November 04, 2027

¢ Creditor: Convertible Promissory Note
Amount Owed: $1,000,000.00
Interest Rate: 8.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

e Creditor: Holders of certain Convertible Promissory Notes
Amount Owed: $3,044,713.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2022
Please see Convertible Promissory Note entry in company securities for
additional information

¢ Creditor: Holders of certain Convertible Promissory Notes (2)
Amount Owed: $304,822.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%



Maturity Date: December 31, 2022
Please see Convertible Promissory Note (2) entry in company securities for
additional information

¢ Creditor: Holders of certain Convertible Notes (1)
Amount Owed: $804,482.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2022
Please see Convertible Note (1) entry in company securities for additional
information

e Creditor: Holders of certain Convertible Notes (2)
Amount Owed: $92,772.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2024
Please see Convertible Note (2) entry in company securities section for
additional information

o Creditor: Holders of certain Convertible Notes (3)
Amount Owed: $574,370.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2022
Please see Convertible Note (3) entry in company securities section for
additional information

¢ Creditor: Holders of certain Bridge Convertible Notes
Amount Owed: $266,396.00
Interest Rate: 10.0%
Maturity Date: June 30, 2023
Please see Bridge Convertible Note entry in company securities for additional
information

¢ Creditor: Holders of certain Convertible Notes (4)
Amount Owed: $1,092,822.00
Interest Rate: 8.0%
Please see Convertible Note (4) entry in company securities section for
additional information

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: Robert Legendre
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: During 2021 and 2020, the
Company received two loans in the aggregate amount of $31,000 from one of the
shareholders, Robert Legendre.



Material Terms: The loan bears an interest rate of 4% per annum and the
maturity date is defined as the date the Company Series B funds $2,000,000 or
more. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance
of the loans are $31,000 and $25,000, respectively.

e Name of Entity: Jerry Silver
Relationship to Company: Shareholder
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: During 2021 and 2020, the
Company received two loans in the aggregate amount of $17,300 from one of the
shareholders, Jerry Silver.
Material Terms: The loan bears and interest rate of 4% per annum and the
maturity date is defined as the date the Company Series B funds $2,000,000 or
more. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance
of the loans are $17,300 and $2,000, respectively.

¢ Name of Entity: Daniel Ash & Christine Schumacher
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: During 2021, the Company
granted temporary loans in the aggregate amount of $10,000 to the
shareholder/employee Daniel Ash and $4,000 to shareholder/employee Christine
Schumacher.
Material Terms: As of December 31, 2021, the outstanding balance of the loans is
$14,000.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $49,881,307.52
Valuation Details:

Management determined the valuation of the Company based on 3 factors: Patent
Portfolio, Total Addressable Market, and Comparable Companies. The Company
solicited advice from several knowledgeable parties in the Financial and Investment
markets and review of industry, financial and technology information and research
reports.

Patents

Management valued the Company based on its internal estimates of the value of the
patent portfolio. MoJoose has 10 granted patents in the U.S and other countries and is
an emerging leader in the wireless smartphone booster / amplifier enclosure market,
with foundational [P positioned amongst some of the largest tech companies in the
world (and undoubtedly on a few radar screens in the value chain). Although the
majority of the Top Ten patent holders in the IP domain is comprised of very large,
multinational technology companies ranging from $12 billion (LG Electronics) to $2.1
trillion (Apple), the distribution of patent ownership is fairly flat, from 25 for Samsung



and 15 for Apple, to 10 for Qualcomm and MoJoose and 9 for Intel. Against an IP comp
group with a median market cap of $144 billion and median ownership of 11 patent
families, MoJoose holds its own against the giants, tied for 9th place with Qualcomm
with 10 patent families.

MoJoose’s top 6 patents for forward citations are well cited by leading players in the
value chain, indicating technology leadership and strong commercial value: Our "314
patent, which ranks in the top quintile of all domain patents, is cited 51x, including
27x% by Mophie (acquired by ZAGG for $100M), as well as by Samsung, Xiaomi, Huawei,
and LG. The “029 patent is cited 19x including Google 10x, Aliph 3x (PE firm bought
Jawbone) and Xiaomi. The ‘679 patent is cited 16x including Apple 2x, Samsung 2x and
Siemens.

The MoJoose patent portfolio has been review by a third-party investment banking
firm, which has verbally informally estimated the Patent portfolio value to be $40M or
more.

Summary of Report: MoJoose, Inc. is an established IP leader with Top Ten rankings
for both Top Assignees, as well as Top Inventors; plus an issued patent portfolio
scoring 11% ahead of the comp group on Domain Influence. These factors combined
with high citation activity by leading players in the value chain such as Apple,
Samsung, Google, Siemens, Huawei, and Xiaomi; as well as newer players like Mophie
(bought by ZAGG) and Aliph (bought Jawbone) are indicative of an emerging market
leader with disruptive technology in integrated signal booster smartphone enclosures.

Total Addressable Market

We believe the addressable market for our product is virtually all persons using
smartphones throughout the world who experience connection problems. There are
6.6 billion smartphones in use worldwide. The number is much higher, but even if only
20% of smartphone users report connection problems. That is potentially 1.52 billon
persons with a smartphone and connection problems.

We have an independent research report that projects revenues for battery cases
worldwide of $9.7 billion by 2027 and for signal boosters of $12.85 billion and reaching
$22.8 billion by 2028

Market and Need for the Product
Online

We considered the potential need and acceptance of the product. Amazon has given us
information that there is an average of 2.1 million searches for battery cases on
Amazon per month and approximately 850,000 searches for signal boosters on
Amazon per month. Our marketing associate who manages our Amazon market
reports states that online sales from Walmart are about 75% of the online sales from
Amazon. Our initial marketing strategy will be Amazon and Walmart online. We will
bid for these searches for a first line view of products on these searches so that the



people searching will see that our product is the only battery case with a built in signal
amplifier and the only signal amplifier that is portable.

Retail Stores

Our Sales Team that will handle our retail store market has been in contact with the
decision makers for all the regional and national retail stores that carry consumer
electronic products, and all of them have indicated they would like to carry our
product when we have cases for all the major cell phone models. These chains
represent 30,000 stores.

Comparable Companies

1. Breylon, -- Tech start up

Total Revenue $250K, with pre-money valuation of $50M
Description

Developer of headset-free virtual displays designed to replace traditional monitors
and virtual reality headgear for metaverse applications. The company's displays
include proprietary depth modulation and light-field expansion technologies that
work together and provide true optical depth, enabling viewers to get access to an
immersive panoramic virtual screen that engulfs them. We believe Breylon is an
appropriate comparison to our company because they are similiar in size &
development. However, none of their products include an extra battery and cell phone
signal amplifier which we believe makes MoJoose a differentiator.

Most Recent Financing Status (as of 02-Aug-2022)

The company raised $11.55 million through a combination of Series A, Series Al, and
Series A2 venture funding from Lockheed Martin Ventures and some undisclosed
investors on May 11, 2022, putting the company’'s pre-money valuation at $50 million.
Revenue $250K

https:/www.crunchbase.com/organization/brelvon

2. Zagg (NASDAQ: ZAGG) A Cell Phone Assessories Company
ZAGG annual revenue for 2019 was $521.9M

https; www.crunchbase.com/organization/zagg

3. Mophie

Mophie is one of the active companies in the cell phone battery case market. It has a
large number of models on Amazon and is in many retail stores.

“The company was acquired by Zagg (NASDAQ: ZAGG) for $100 million on March 3,
2016.



https:www.crunchbase.com/organization/mophie

4. Otter Products "Otter Box”

Otter Products is a manufacturer, designer and distributor of “ruggedized” cases for
smart phones and tablets that are shock resistant and water resistant. Most of the
products are sold under the “Otter Box” trademark.

PitchBook reports its 2016 revenues were $2B. And in 2018 the Company was valued
at $2.5B. "OtterBox is a $2.5 billion-plus enterprise that produces the top-selling case
for smartphones in the U.S.". https://efirstbankblog.com/customer-spotlight-
otterbox/

Although Otterbox is a company that is at a significatnly later stage of development
compared to our company, we believe their large valuation demonstrates the potential
for growth in our addressable market.

https.//www.crunchbase.com/organization/otterbox

None of the cases from these companies include an extra battery and cell phone signal
amplifier which we believe makes MoJoose a differentiator.

In consideration of all the factors, management believes $49.9M pre-money valuation
represents a reasonable valuation and a signjficant discount. The company set its
valuation internally, without a formal third-party independent valuation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this
calculation, we have assumed: (i) all preferred stock is converted to common stock;
(i) all outstanding options and other securities with a right to acquire shares are
exercised; and (iii) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation takes into account the conversion of convertible securities
currently outstanding. The Company currently has $6,180,577 in Convertible Notes
outstanding. Please refer to the Company Securities, Dilution, Risk Factors and
Liguidity sections of the Offering Memorandum for further details regarding current
outstanding convertible securities which may affect your ownership in the future.

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent
evaluation.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,996.48 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

o Working Capital



94.5%
The use of $10,000 proceeds will be to cover general business overhead expenses.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,234,998.15, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

o Marketing
43.7%
Marketing funds will be used to execute our on-line sales and marketing strategy
which will include Amazon sponsored ad campaigns, social media and search
engine analytics and Google ad words.

o Research & Development
11.0%
New product development for the iPhone 12 and 13 series of phones as well as
the latest Samsung models.

e (Operations
26.3%
General business operation expenses including employment, insurance, lease,
utilities, accounts payable, legal services and accounting services.

e [nventory
8.0%

Bill of Materials for products and contract manufacturing services

e [ntellectual Property Creation and Maintenance Fees
5.5%
Use of proceeds will be to maintain the 10 granted patent maintenance fees and
the fees for creation of new patents

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.



Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
www.mjoose.com (Www.mjoose.com/annualreports).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/mjoose
Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Moloose, Inc.
Laguna Niguel, California

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Moloose, Inc. (the "Company,”), which comprise
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, and the related statement of operations,
statement of shareholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year ending December 31, 2021 and December
31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical
procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Going Concern

As discussed in Note 14, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concarn.

%@'hﬂrpart F%

July 4, 2022
Los Angeles, California




MOJOOSE INC.

See gccompanying notes to financial statements.

BALANCE SHEET
(UNAUDITED)

As of December 31, 2021 2020

{USD % in Dollars)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents S 48,201 25,416
Acccounts Receivable, net 6,118 3,076
Inventory 159,852 160,527
Due from Related Parties 7.582 -
Prepaids and Other Current Assets 5,551 35

Total Current Assets 227,304 189,054

Property and Equipment, net - 9,519

Intangible Assets 104,474 104,939

Security Deposit 9,041 9,041

Total Assets 5 340,819 312,603

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 5 386,601 381,691
Credit Cards 14,127 17,358
Current Portion of Loans and Notes 481,504 288,763
Convertible Note 4,900,000 4,900,000
Accrued Interest 1,080,652 764,702
Shareholder Loan 48,300 27,000
Other Current Liabilities 235,870 121,894

Total Current Liabilities 7,147,055 6,501,409

Promissory Notes and Loans 7,996 8,500

Total Liabilities 7,155,050 6,509,909

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock 10,204 10,204

Series A Preferred Stock 1,801 1,801

Additional Paid in Capital 2,004,858 2,002,795

Retained Earnings/{Accumulated Deficit) (8,831,093) (8,212,106}

Total Stockholders' Equity (6,814,231) (6,197,306)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 5 340,819 5 312,603




MOJOOSE INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

(USD § in Dollars)
Net Revenue
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses
General and Administrative
Research and Development
Sales and Marketing
Total operating expenses

Operating Income/(Loss)

Interest Expense
Other Loss/{Income)

Income/{Loss) before provision for income taxes

Provision/(Benefit) for income taxes

Net Income/(Net Loss)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2021 2020
71,154 5 34,623
3,303 5,332
67,851 29,290
410,774 508,313
- 4,311
8,023 29,992
418,797 542,616
(350,946) (513,326)
321,200 278,730
(53,158) 25,648
(618,987) (817,704)
(618,987) S (817,704)




MOJOOSE INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS” EQuUITY

(UNAUDITED)

Comnion 510k St Sead Mok Additional Faid in Retained eamnings) Total Shareholder
{in , SUS) Amsount Shares Amount Capital |Accumulated Deficit) Exquity
Balance —December 31, 2019 10,204,080 &% 10,204 1E00.720 % 1,801 % 3,002,725 5 (7,294,402) 5 8,373,671}
Canital distribut kon 923,931} |959,93 1}
Bt incomiey[loss) (817.704) |817, 704}
Balance —December 31, 3020 L0204 1B0D.TZD 1,801 2,002,755 & [5,212.10E) 5 |6, 197,306
Sharg-Based Cormnpssraatian 2,063 2,063
Bt imcomiy |1oss) 1618,287) |&18,387}
Balance —Docember 31, 2021 10,204,080 5 10,204 1,800,720 % 1,801 3 2,004 858 5 (2,831,093) 5 {6,814,231)

Sow acoompanying nodes fo fnancial stotements



MOJOOSE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

(UNAUDITED)

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
(UsSD S in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income/{loss) (618,987) & (817,704)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided/(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation of Property 9,219 1,010
Amortization of Intangibles 15,109 13,649
Share-based Compensation 2,062
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Acccounts receivable, net {3,042) 50,293
Inventory 675 18,361
Prepaids and Other Current Assets 15,516) b, 484
Due from Related Parties {7.582) -
Accounts Payable 4,910 (3,779)
Credit Cards {3,231) (122)
Other Current Liabilities 113,976 57,8596
Accrued Interest 315,950 274,540
Net cash provided/{used) by operating activities (176,158) (399,372)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Intangible Assets (14,594) (13,655)
Net cash provided/{used) in investing activities (14,594) {13,655)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Distribution (9599,931)
Boarrowing on Convertible Note 1,159,931
Borrowing on Shareholder Loans 21,300 12,000
Borrowing on Promissory Motes and Loans 192,237 217,663
Net cash provided/{used) by financing activities 213,537 429,663
Change in Cash 22,785 16,636
Cash—beginning of yvear 25416 8,780
Cash—end of year 48,201 5 25416

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest 5 -
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 5 =
OTHER NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Purchase of property and equipment not yet paid for 5

Issuance of equity in return for note

Issuance of equity in return for accrued payroll and other liabilities

See accompanying notes to financigl stotements.



MOJOOSE INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 3n1I 2021 AND DECEMBER 31, 2020

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Moloose Inc. was incorporated on February 21, 2014, in the state of Delaware. The financial statements of Moloose
Inc. (which may be referred to as the "Company”, "we”, "us”, or "our”) are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.5. GAAP”). The Company's headquarters are located
in Laguna Niguel, California.

Moloose Inc. a California-based accessory designer and manufacturer that ensures smartphone users stay connected
by solving the world-wide weak cell signal challenge. The mloose 4-in-1 case, developed by our patented breakthrough
signal-amplifying technology, helps deliver a reliable cellular connection with every call. The smallest, most affordable
signal-amplifying device of its kind, the mloose smartphone case picks up where a regular cell signal ends. Our flagship
products are Apple and Samsung smartphone protective cases that include signal amplification technology, a battery-
life extender, and radiation reducing technology.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("US GAAP"), The Company has adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks. The Company’s cash is deposited in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management believes are creditworthy. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit
accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the
Company's cash and cash eguivalents did not exceeded FDIC insured limits.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that the Company expects to collect on gross
customer trade receivables. We estimate losses on receivables based on known troubled accounts and historical
experience of losses incurred. Receivables are considered impaired and written-off when it is probable that all
contractual payments due will not be collected in accordance with the terms of the agreement. As of December 31,
2021, and 2020, the Company determined that no reserve was necessary.



MOJOOSE INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND Decemeer 31, 2020

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs related to finished goods which are determined
using an average method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to earnings as incurred
and additions and major improvements are capitalized. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of, and the
related depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the period of disposal and the resulting gain or loss is credited
or charged to earnings.

Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the related asset type or term of the operating lease using
the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The estimated service lives for property and equipment is as
follows:

Category Useful Life
Computer/Office Equipment 5 years
Testing equipment 5 years

Impairment of Lang-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. We look for indicators of a trigger event for asset impairment and pay special attention to any
adverse change in the extent or manner in which the asset is being used or in its physical condition. Assets are grouped
and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a
location level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future operating plans and projected
cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset
carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the
estimated future cash flows associated with the asset,

Intangible Assets

The Company capitalizes its patent and filing fees and legal patent and prosecution fees in connection with internally
developed pending patents. When pending patents are issued, patents will be amortized over the expected period to
be benefitted, not to exceed the patent lives, which may be as long as ten years.

Other intangibles include research and software development costs, which will be amortized over the expected period
to be benefitted, which may be as long as five years.



MOJOOSE INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 3n1I 2021 AND DECEMBER 31, 2020

Income Taxes

Moloose Inc. is a C corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability
method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is provided on deferred tax assets if it is determined that
it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company records interest, net of any
applicable related income tax benefit, on potential income tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense.
The Campany records tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized or paid, including in connection with the resolution of any related appeals or other legal
processes. Accordingly, the Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits based on the amounts
that are more likely than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority. The Company recognizes interest and/or
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense,

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it
believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At
times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with FASB ASC 606, revenue from contracts with customers, when
delivery of goods is the sole performance obligation in its contracts with customers. The Company typically collects
payment upon sale and recognizes the revenue when the item has shipped and has fulfilled its sole performance
obligation.

Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with the customer: the Company determines the existence of a
contract with a customer when the contract is mutually approved; the rights of each party in relation to the services to
be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the services can be identified, the customer has the capacity
and intention to pay, and the contract has commercial substance.

2) ldentification of performance obligations in the contract: performance obligations consist of a promised in
a contract (written or oral) with a customer to transfer to the customer either a good or service (or a bundle of goods
or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer.

3] Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: revenues are recognized when or
as control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers.

The Company earns revenues from the sale of its designed and manufactured accessories designed, which ensures
smartphone users stay connected by solving the world-wide weak cell signal challenge.

Cost of sales

Costs of goods sold include the cost of accessories sold.
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Advertising and Promotion

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 amounted to 58,023 and 529,992, which is included in sales and marketing
expenses.

Research and Development Costs
Costs incurred in the research and development of the Company’s products are expensed as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to both employee and non-employees in accordance with ASC
718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The Company uses the Black-
Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (such as cash
and cash eguivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments),

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used
in valuation techniques. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2—0Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company's assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations reguire significant judgment.

COVID-139

In March 2020, the outbreak and spread of the COVID-19 virus was classified as a global pandemic by the World Health
Organization. This widespread disease impacted the Company's business operations, including its employees,
customers, vendors, and communities. The COVID-19 pandemic may continue to impact the Company's business
operations and financial operating results, and there is substantial uncertainty in the nature and degree of its continued
effects over time. The extent to which the pandemic impacts the business going forward will depend on numerous
evolving factors management cannot reliably predict, including the duration and scope of the pandemic; governmental,
business, and individuals' actions in response to the pandemic; and the impact on economic activity including the
possibility of recession or financial market instability. These factors may adversely impact consumer and business
spending on products as well as customers' ability to pay for products and services on an ongoing basis. This uncertainty
also affects management's accounting estimates and assumptions, which could result in greater variability in a variety
of areas that depend on these estimates and assumptions, including investments, receivables, and forward-looking
Euidance.



MOJOOSE INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND Decemeer 31, 2020

Subsequent Events

The Caompany considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through July 4, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were issued.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

FASB issued ASU No, 2019-02, leases, that requires organizations that lease assets, referred to as "lessees"”, to recognize
on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases with lease terms of
more than twelve months, ASU 2019-02 will also require disclosures to help investors and other financial statement
users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases and will include
gualitative and quantitative requirements. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, and
early application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on the financial
statements and related disclosures.

The FASE issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date, including
those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) provide

supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a
significant impact on our financial statements.

3. INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Finished goods 159,852 160,527
Total Inventory 5 159,852 S 160,527

4. DETAILS OF CERTAIN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Account receivables consist primarily of trade receivables and accounts payable consist primarily of trade payables.

Prepaid and other current assets consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Acrrued expenses 35 35
Prepaid taxes 5,516

Total Prepaids and Other Current Assets & 5551 5§ 35
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Other current liabilities consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Accrued Expenses 234,790 121,894
Accrued interest 1,080

Total Other Current Liabilities S 235,870 5 121,894

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, property and equipment consists of:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Computer/Office Equipment 5 25,324 5 25,324
Testing equipment 119,536 119,536
Property and Equipment, at Cost 144,859 144,859
Accumulated depreciation (144,859) (135,340)
Property and Equipment, Net s - 5 9,519

Depreciation expenses for property and equipment for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were in the
amount of 59,519 and 51,010, respectively.

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, intangible asset consist of:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Patent 5 115,377 S 100,783
Software 1,200 1,200
Research & Development Costs 16,656 16,656
Intangible assets, at cost 133,231.99 118,638.44
Accumulated amortization (28,758) (13,649)
Intangible assets, Net 5 104,474 § 104,989

Entire intangible assets have been amortized. Amortization expenses for intangible asset for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2021, and 2020 was in the amount of 515,109 and 513,649, respectively.

-11 -
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The following table summarizes the estimated amortization expense relating to the Company's intangible assets as of
December 31, 2021:

Period Expense

2022 $ (15,109}
2023 (15,109)
2024 (15,109)
2025 (15,109}
Thereafter (44,039)
Total 5 (104,474)

7. CAPITALIZATION AND EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 15,000,000 shares of Common Stock with a par value of 50.001. As of December 31,
2021, and December 31, 2020, 10,204,080 shares have been issued and are outstanding.

Series A Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 1,800,720 shares of Preferred Shares with a $0.001 par value, As of December 31,
2021, and December 31, 2020, 1,800,720 shares have been issued and are outstanding.

8. SHAREBASED COMPENSATION

During 2016, the Company authorized the Stock Option Plan (which may be referred to as the “Plan”). The Company
reserved 2,118,494 shares of its Common Stock pursuant to the Plan, which provides for the grant of shares of stock
options, stock appreciation rights, and stock awards (performance shares) to employees, non-employee directors, and
non-employee consultants. The option exercise price generally may not be less than the underlying stock's fair market
value at the date of the grant and generally have a term of four years, The amounts granted each calendar year to an
employee or nonemployee is limited depending on the type of award.

Stock Options

The Campany granted stock options. The stock options were valued using the Black-5choles pricing model with a range
of inputs indicated below:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021

Expected life (years) 10.00
Risk-free interest rate 2.50%
Expected volatility T5%
Annual dividend yield 0%

The risk-free interest rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United States
government securities appropriate for the expected term of the Company's employee stock options.

-12 -
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The expected term of employee stock options is calculated using the simplified method which takes into consideration
the contractual life and vesting terms of the options.

The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for options granted using the historical volatility of
comparable public company's Common Stock. The Company will continue to monitor peer companies and other relevant
factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants, until such time that the Company’s Common
Stock has enough market history to use historical volatility.

The dividend yield assumption for options granted is based on the Company's history and expectation of dividend
payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its commaon stock, and the Company does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Management estimated the fair value of Common Stock based on recent sales to third parties. Forfeitures are
recognized as incurred.

A summary of the Company's stock options activity and related information is as follows:
Weighted Weighted Average
Mumber of Awards Average Exercise Contract Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 - 5 - -
Granted
Execised .
Expired/Cancelled - -
DOutstanding at December 31, 2020 5
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2020 - 5
Granted 1,920,000 5
Execised . 5
5
5
]

0.10

Expired/Cancelled -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 1,920,000
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2021 1,920,000

- 9.05
- 9.05

Stock option expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021 were 52,062,
9. DEBT

Promissory Motes & Loans

During the years presented, the Company entered into promissory notes & loans agreements. The details of the
Company's loans, notes, and the terms are as follows:

For thes Year Croded Decamber 3031 Farthe fear [nded Cecember 5123
Todal

11 Bonuesd e Fioar-CuarsTi Tord Ipinreni Lument Sn-Cucrerl redEsiecraa
DBl [Pt a@ek a8l FAF P Frincipsl damaesmt Inierew Bew Doorossng Pericd  Eoiericy Dots|  Cazares I fzrifon Pariion indebindreie | Dpene Accned imeme Forden Foriban [
Prom micry Plote -8 certadn ek 5 11538 P 11303014 s 5 23 5 LA 5 ZaToo 5 . IT5e0 | 5 O % [T I2E0D 5 £ 13580
PFrom giony Mon: -3 Deriien kreler § 5 4 1Ty 11/p0rda ERRIE 5 9 5 B F O 2lEW 5 ) HEEED | § LU LU ] fesm % 5 ILED
Froem by Bt -3 oewlain ke L 13,035 A I 12/=ama e % 53 0§ A4E 3 Lmm % % 13080 | 4 LEL ] 113 8 1aomm % 5 13080
From mony Riots -8 merisdn lerder H 11,0335 4 D 1/ L5 3S NI 231 &  LEI1 & LiDoEd 5 ] 15050 | 5 0 5 1,108 5 LoD 5 =1 13350
PFrom niony Mone -3 Dermen krder § 13508 30k LTELTEL U N TEA ] (B P M1 OF Llsm 3 b 15580 | 5 & - 8 & 5 .
Froem by Bt -3 pewlsin kv H 11.%3% L3 E'laane] AnI2 % 1% 8 513 1 Laam % % 11.5%0 | 4 H L] H H]
From oy Mots -5 erisin nder H 17,502 L AL LN & 1,78 § L3 § s 5 H 1750 | & H H H - ]
Froem by Pt -3 pewlsin berake H S0,035 L3 Eanr] a2 % 03 5 1A 4 W % % e | 8 H L] H H]
Broas Bpody Rlone -3 eamn vk § 1758 3 e AL NIRRT S LR ] auy g N5 5 kS Lol b & 5 & 5
Fromm by Pt -3 pirlsin b 3 25,008 L3 SILANEL E1E S P E] ] 251 3 148 I PR k] 25,060 | 3 H L] H ]
From oy Mlota -8 torisin lerder H 15,008 L. 114730 L3321 % 121 5 us1 5 ] % 15,080 | & % . H % - ] -
BAN I can 5 et 1,75% BERCHON  SAGaEsk & a5 511§ B % 150 5 &80 | § G & 193 5 6 ASN 5 BEED
Mobei Pkl = byweorth Vil L] 100035 Pl ] UM ) s o0 8 RS0 8 100 % 118830 |4 AEID % EA3] 8 1onpoo 8 1D
Hatm Payuble - yworih veniures H S003S =106 FEREE Epior] LD 3333) &  J003 5 IGASE & ] E EOLSE | & 15E % 58 5 il 5 IOOSE
Mored Posable — Daatath Vennres § SIS a3 AT LTI 5 G 5 LT ] & SRR | & - & . ] & k] .
FPFLOAR 1 ET.*1 1 I 100 sidtamaa) & 13 1 WO 4 L % 3 10350 | & ETE 4 -1 ) BLIRE 4 - 8  ETJED
|Fartad f OMRARE § ERTIR § AWIS0A § TEsss § RITADD |G TEER & AEMAE F bELTRE § BS00 F DL E

-13 -



MOJOOSE INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND Decemeer 31, 2020

The summary of the future maturities is as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021

2022 5 481,504
2023 S04
2024 504
2025 504
2026 504
Thereafter 43,953
Tatal 5 527,473
Owner Loans

During the Company borrowed money from the owners. The details of the loans from the owners are as follows:

Fo the Vear Eraled Dessmiber 3631 Far ghie fear Ended Decereber I
mai-
Priedgal  inlenean imtErean Farmssd Cirsal Hae-Laimene Teal Intere=t Anciefi CairsEal =TT Teaal
] [T Riwe R ioeaing Fenad sl m oy Do Fapmriie- nEiRs Hartin Poron indebmedeseg | Fopeiie I Bertion Foimias  irebeTIRcieaL
Beban Lagerade 4 150 AR 1311 338 v 1 camgmry teceae 53,008 000 e Seres B furciag [ LEDD § 1038 §F 000 3 [ g - & T - [T
Bpbed] Lingiraii: 3 B LN R I P | O b company sptewe 3000000 lipm Sevas B horaliag & § ] apm 5 § B | & & k] ] §
Sy e i 11,31 4T% 12313121 e ihe com@ay receive 51,000 053 hom Sevie B lunding [ S ! . 15300 % 1300 | & - % H .8 [ .
ey S 5 7 k1 A 13 11 5338 O 1 campery ceceae 53,030 0000 hom Seres B furaliag ] o5 ED J000 5 e o ] F 103 § H T
Tl ] 1088 § 1) 5 smim % § | & ) 5 anEm § § 2T
Convertible Note(s)
Below are the details of the convertible notes:
Far the Fear Ended Decamber 3121 For the Year Ced ed Diacemier JO20
Frigcpad  Inener BLSaiily FlEE Baprged Limsgng e L Taryl [EIFTe] Apgrasd LTCE= T Tatal
Dutr Irmirumark Heme Armarank Fra Parid Draiw Tl Ininrak Partian Partizn Ircdabéa s o Inkarmi Camei Forbon Forion Ik b d rara
Brewirth Wil § 500,000 400 R T L FAE S EFLIF el ] LET. 4B S0a00 B ABS 20,000 BT d6S SO O0E % SEL il
B DA Y ies § 250000 400 [ T ET I = I PAE S R LR L0 4TS EF0E0 HrAls 10, {0 3T 4ES LS00 LET AT
Lrpaeamh Wenhures 5 Lon D 105% OALARRET IR0 1300 TRH 130200 LETAID &0 TREH T 5 1R
LTt Weniums 5 PO 1.00% 1072518 13115303 20300 1E.113 T TALI1R 180K 0,213 T % 760,317
Lrworth Werbumm LT I T-T - oo /200e 13031510 28,000 10,108 250,000 S0 FEE ] 1= 30 1m0 % 185 30
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Lagertar intsnaiianal Hedding Ca LTD § 250,000 1.00% OLME/2017 1341153033 BT ] AR014 FEDa00 014 10,008 18014 IS0 5 188,014
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The convertible notes are convertible into Common Shares at a conversion price. The conversion price is obtained by
dividing (a) the outstanding loan balance by (b) fifty percent (50%) of the price per share paid by investors in the
Qualifying Financing. Since the conversion feature is convertible into variable number of shares and does not have fixed-
for-fixed features, the conversion feature was not bifurcated and recorded separately.
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10. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 consists of the following:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

Net Operating Loss 5 (184,706) 5 (170,653)
Valuation Allowance 184,706 170,653
Net Provision for income tax 5 - 5 -

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2021, and December 31,
2020 are as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

Net Operating Loss 5 (738,532) S (553,826)
Valuation Allowance 738,532 553,826
Total Deferred Tax Asset 5 - 5 -

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income will
be generated to use the existing deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, the Company has determined that
it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefits of the federal and state net deferred tax
assets, and, as a result, full valuation allowance has been set against its net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020. The amount of the deferred tax asset to be realized could be adjusted if estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced or increased.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, the Company had federal cumulative net operating loss ("NOL")
carryforwards of 52,460,532, and the Company had state net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards of approximately
52,460,532, Utilization of some of the federal and state NOL carryforwards to reduce future income taxes will depend
on the Company's ability to generate sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration of the carryforwards. The federal
net operating loss carryforward is subject to an 80% limitation on taxable income, does not expire, and will carry on
indefinitely.

The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial statements if that position is more likely than not
to be sustained on a tax return upon examination by the relevant taxing authority, based on the technical merits of the
position. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain
tax positions.

11. RELATED PARTY

During 2021 and 2020, the Company received two loans in the aggregate amount of 531,000 from one of the
shareholders, Robert Legendre. The loan bears an interest rate of 4% per annum and the maturity date is defined as the
date the Company Series B funds 52,000,000 or more. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the outstanding
balance of the loans are $31,000 and $25,000, respectively.
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During 2021 and 2020, the Company received two loans in the aggregate amount of $17,300 from one of the
shareholders, lerry Silver. The loan bears and interest rate of 4% per annum and the maturity date is defined as the date
the Company Series B funds 52,000,000 or more. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the outstanding
balance of the loans are 517,300 and 52,000, respectively.

During 2021, the Company granted temporary loans in the aggregate amount of $10,000 to the shareholder/femployee
Daniel Ash and 54,000 to shareholder/employee Christine Schumacher. As of December 31, 2021, the outstanding
balance of the loans is $14,000.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

On September 12, 2018, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PBMB Journey LLC to rent business premises
in Aliso Viejo, California. The base rent was 53,605 and ended on October 31, 2021. Rent expenses were in the amount
of 539,655 and 543,260 as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

Contingencies

The Company’'s operations are subject to a variety of local and state regulation. Failure to comply with one or more of
those regulations could result in fines, restrictions on its operations, or losses of permits that could result in the
Company ceasing operations.

Litigation and Claims

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of operations in the normal
course of business, As of December 31, 2021, there were no pending or threatened lawsuits that could reasonably be
expected to have a material effect on the results of the Company's operations.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for the period from December 31, 2021 through July 4, 2022, which is
the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

There have been no other events or transactions during this time which would have a material effect on these financial
statements.

14. GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has a net operating

loss of 5350,946, an operating cash flow loss of 5176,158, and liquid assets in cash of 548,201, which less than a year’s
worth of cash reserves as of December 31, 2021.
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The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months following the date the financial
statements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to produce revenues and/or obtain financing
sufficient to meet current and future obligations and deploy such to produce profitable operating results.

Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to generate revenues and raise capital as needed to satisfy its
capital needs. During the next twelve months, the Company intends to fund its operations through debt and/or equity
financing.

There are no assurances that management will be able to raise capital on terms acceptable to the Company. If it is
unable to obtain sufficient amounts of additional capital, it may be required to reduce the scope of its planned
development, which could harm its business, financial condition, and operating results. The accompanying financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result